
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

January 22, 2013 



 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION January 22, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 
 
 
ROLL CALL: FAKKEMA       WASINGER     
 

JENSEN       WALLIN           
    
   FIKSE        FREEMAN      
 
   SCHLECHT    
 
 Page 4    
1. Approval of Minutes – December 11, 2012 

 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not 

otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Page 21 

3. 2013 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT DOCKET – Public Hearing 

  The Planning Commission will review and discuss the 2013 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments Docket. The Comprehensive Plan is a document that establishes the 
community vision for Oak Harbor.  At the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning 
Commission will forward a recommendation to the City Council. 

 
 Page 28  
4. 2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – Scenic Views – Public Meeting 

The Planning Commission will continue the discussion of the Scenic View Study from its 
last meeting.  The scenic views were rated at the last meeting and the Planning 
Commission is expected to discuss them further and select views for further analysis.  

 
 Page 36 
5. ELECTRONIC MESSAGE CENTER SIGNS CODE UPDATE – Public Meeting 

Staff will facilitate continued discussion with the Planning Commission regarding the 
regulations for electronic message center signs contained in OHMC 19.36.  

 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 

 

December 11, 2012 

 

3



 

Planning Commission 
December 11, 2012 

Page 1 of 3 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
December 11, 2012 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Greg Wasinger, Jeff Wallin, Kristi Jensen Jill Johnson-

Pfeiffer and David Fikse. 
Absent:  Gerry Oliver.  
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers and Senior 
Planner, Cac Kamak.   

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: MS. JENSEN MOVED, MR. WALLIN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 27, 2012 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Wendy Campbell deWinter (735 Bay Front Lane) read written comments (PC Attachment 1) 
regarding global warming. 
 
2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – SCENIC VIEWS – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak recapped the Planning Commission’s November meeting in which the Planning 
Commisison reviewed criteria for evaluating scenic views within Oak Harbor.  Since not all 
scenic views have the same public interest and value, the Planning Commission also weighted 
the criteria to help narrow down the selection and focus on the views that preserves the 
community’s interests.  The criteria and the ratings that will be used to initially evaluate the 
scenic views are provided in the below. Mr. Kamak noted that he assigned points to each score.  

Mr. Kamak also provided a map showing the scenic corridors.  (PC Attachment 2).  Mrs. 
Johnson-Pfeiffer provided additional scenic view information (PC Attachment 3). 
 

Proposed Criteria  Rating Score 
H = High            L = Low 
M = Medium      D = Deduct 

Score  

View from public property H  100  
View from streets   

SR 20 M  50  
Arterial M  50  
Collector L  25  
Local L  25  

View from a pedestrian/pedestrian trail  H  100  
View of a specific landmark H  100  
The need to buy property D1  -100  
The need for special zoning regulations D  -50  
Additional Criteria   
Entryway views  H  100  
Waterfront connectivity  H  100  
 

 
Max - 
550  

 

4



 

Planning Commission 
December 11, 2012 

Page 2 of 3 

Mr. Kamak displayed each view and scoring sheet. The Planning Commission was asked to 
score each view.   
 
Planning Commission discussed what “waterfront connectivity” means. Ms.  Johnson-Pfeiffer 
said she had visual connectivity in mind when she suggested it.  There was discussion about 
reserving scenic views downtown while encouraging high intensity uses as described for the 
downtown in the Comprehensive Plan.   There was some discussion about a separate plan for 
the downtown that would have to include property owners, adopting a plan and putting 
regulations in place.  Planning Commission members expressed a desire to keep a couple of 
waterfront views while encouraging redevelopment.  
 
The results of the Planning Commission’s first round of scoring are shown below. 

  Views Rating Score 
Qualified 

(Y/N) 

1 Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights to Erie 350  
2 Northbound SR 20 – Swantown to Scenic Heights 300  
3 Scenic Heights Trailhead 325  
4 SW Freund Street 275  
5 Waterloo Rd & Scenic Heights 175  
6 Swantown – Kimball to SR 20 200  
7 Swantown & Fireside Lane 125  
8 Barrington Drive and Fleet Street int 175  
9 Fleet Street 225  
10 Barrington Drive and Fairhaven int 175  
11 Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park 400  
12 Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park 400  
13 Bayshore Drive – Dock to Midway 450  
14 Pioneer Way – Midway to Regatta 450  
15 Pioneer Way – Ireland to Midway 300  
16 Pioneer Way – SR 20 to City Beach 200  
17 Jensen Street 175  
18 Midway Blvd – SE 8th to Midway 250  
19 Regatta Drive – SE 8th to Pioneer Way 450  
20 Skagit Valley College parking lot 150  
21 Crosby Ave by Cathlamet Drive 175  
22 Crosby Ave by Prow Street 75  
23 Airline Way 175  
24 SW 6th and Dyer 175  
25 Southbound SR 20 and NE 16th Ave 350  
26 Dock Street – Barrington to Bayshore 375  
27 Ft Nugent Avenue – Quince St to Neinhuis St 350  
28 City Beach St   
 
Mr. Kamak said he would send tonight’s Power Point presentation to the Planning Commission 
and asked them to fill out the “Qualified (Y/N) column based on their own evaluation.  He will 
then compile that information for discussion at the January meeting. 
 
Mr. Fakkema asked for public comment. 
 
Wendy Campbell deWinter commented that composition of the aesthetic views are unique in 
Oak Harbor and is very important to preserve. 
 

5



 

Planning Commission 
December 11, 2012 

Page 3 of 3 

 
2013 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT DOCKET – Public Meeting 

Mr. Kamak reported that the January Planning Commission meeting regarding the preliminary 
docket for 2013 will be advertised on January 5, 2013.  The major portion of the work proposed 
for 2013 will be focused around the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update.  No action is requested 
at this time.  The Planning Commission will be required to make a recommendation on the 
preliminary docket at the January 22nd, 2013 meeting.   
 
Mr. Fakkema asked for public comment seeing none the meeting was concluded. 
 
Ms. Johnson-Pfeiffer noted that this was her last meeting and expressed her appreciation for 
the Planning Commission and staff.  
 
ADJOURN:  9:20 p.m. 

6



7



8



9



1

20
25

14

1

5

4

6

26

7

13

2
27

15

9

3

24

17

11

19

8

18

23 22

10

21
16

12

Revised:  12/11/2012

Disclaimer:
Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of
Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy,  eliability or timeliness of anyinformation
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not
be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy, reliability or
timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any information
obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

POTENTIAL VIEW CORRIDOR MAP - DRAFT
Identified Views

1. 
View # View Name

Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights to Erie
2. Northbound SR 20 – Swantown to Scenic Heights
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 
11. 
12. 
13. 
14. 
15. 

Scenic Heights Trailhead
SW Freund Street
Waterloo Rd & Scenic Heights

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.

Airline Way

Swantown – Kimball to SR 20
Swantown & Fireside Lane
Barrington Drive and Fleet Street int

SW 6th and DyerFleet Street
Barrington Drive and Fairhaven int
Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park
Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park
Bayshore Drive – Dock to Midway
Pioneer Way – Midway to Regatta
Pioneer Way – Ireland to Midway

Pioneer Way – SR 20 to City Beach
Jensen Street
Midway Blvd – SE 8th to Midway
Regatta Drive – SE 8th to Pioneer Way

Southbound SR 20 and NE 16th Ave

Crosby Ave by Prow Street
Crosby Ave by Cathlamet Drive

Dock Street – Barrington to Bayshore

Skagit Valley College parking lot

Legend
Potential View Corridor
City Limits

UGA - County Adopted

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

27. Olive St. - Fort Nugent Ave.

PC ATTACHMENT 210



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



2013 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment 

Docket 

 

Public Hearing 

 

20



  

 

FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP  

Senior Planner 

   

 

PURPOSE 

This report presents the preliminary docket for the 2013 Comprehensive Plan 

amendments.  The preliminary docket is intended to review ideas generated by the 

community, Planning Commission, City Council and the Director of Development 

Services on the amendments to pursue in 2013 for the Comprehensive Plan.  The 

Planning Commission is required by OHMC 18.15.040(7) to make a recommendation to 

the City Council by January 31 of each year and the City Council is required by OHMC 

18.15.040(8) to finalize the docket before the end of March. 

 

AUTHORITY 

The City is required by the Growth Management Act (GMA) to adopt a comprehensive 

plan and to review and revise it pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130.  Oak Harbor Municipal 

Code Chapter 18.15 prescribes the process for considering Comprehensive Plan 

amendments.  The code requires the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing, 

review the preliminary docket and make a recommendation to the City Council. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan every year begins in October with a notice 

to solicit applications for amendments.  The City usually receives applications from 

property owners for land use changes, however, no applications were received this year.  

The Planning Commission deliberates on the amendments in October and November 

each year.  Since the study on scenic views is still underway along with preparations for 

the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update, the Planning Commission did not add any items to 

the 2013 preliminary docket.  The Development Services Director, as permitted by 

OHMC 18.15.030(d), has added a land use change request for city-owned property 

located at 1000 SE City Beach Street (old city shop site) to the preliminary docket. 

 

The preliminary docket was advertised in accordance with OHMC 18.15.040(6) prior to 

the Planning Commission’s public hearing on January 22, 2013. 

 

DISCUSSION 

The proposed preliminary docket for the 2013 Comprehensive Plan amendments includes 

a land use change (1000 SE City Beach St.), update to the Shoreline Master Program, 

2016 Comprehensive Plan major update and the continued study of the 2012 Scenic View 

study. 

 

Land Use Changes (Sponsored Amendment) 

There were no applications from the general public on land use changes.  However, the 

Development Services Director, as permitted by OHMC 18.15.030(d), has added a land 

use change request for city-owned property located at 1000 SE City Beach Street (old 

Date: __January 22, 2013 

Subject: 2013 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments – Preliminary 

Docket   

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 

21



  

city shop site) to the preliminary docket.  The City wishes to explore future uses for this 

property.  As those uses are not likely to be residential (the existing land use designation 

is “High Density Residential”) a land use map amendment will be necessary.  

 

Shoreline Master Program (Mandated Amendment) 

The City Council adopted the Shoreline Master Program on November 20, 2012 as 

mandated by RCW 90.58.080.  However, the Shoreline Master Program will become 

official after the Washington Department of Ecology approves the plan.  That approval is 

expected to occur during 2013.  The Shoreline Master Program can then be incorporated 

into the Comprehensive Plan by reference.  The city does not anticipate any major work 

on this item in 2013 and incorporation into the Comprehensive Plan is a formality. 

 

Scenic View Study (Discretionary Amendment) 

This item was on the 2012 docket and is continued in to the 2013 amendment process.  In 

2012, the City and the Planning Commission gathered public input on this topic and 

identified approximately 27 views of interest.  The Planning Commission also discussed 

methodologies to review the identified views and established criteria to evaluate them.  

The Planning Commission is currently narrowing down the views for further analysis.   

 

2016 Comprehensive Plan Update (Mandated Amendment) 

This item is a requirement for local governments such as Oak Harbor that are fully 

planning under the Growth Management Act.  The original deadline for this requirement 

in accordance to RCW 36.70A.130 was 2012, but legislation was passed to extend the 

deadline to 2016.  This item will revisit all the elements of the Comprehensive Plan such 

as Land Use, Housing, Capital Facilities, Utilities, Transportation, Economic 

Development, Parks and Recreation, Public Facilities etc.  This item will span multiple 

years leading up to adoption in 2016.  The scope of work for this item in 2013 will be to 

review the current policies and identify the scope and process for the update. 

 

OHMC 18.15.070 establishes the criteria to review the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Docket.  The table below provides the applicability of the criteria to the proposed 

preliminary docket.  

 

Criteria provided in 

OHMC 18.15.070 (2) 

2016 

Update 

Shoreline 

Master 

Program  

Scenic 

Views 

Study 

Land Use 

Changes 

(1000 SE City 

Beach Street) 

(a)  The proposed 

amendments are consistent 

with Growth Management 

Act (GMA) and the 

Countywide Planning 

Policies (CPP). 

Yes 

Mandated  

(RCW 

36.70A.130) 

Yes 

Mandated  

(RCW 

RCW 

90.58.080)  

The study 

and the 

process is 

consistent 

with GMA 

and CPP 

Considering 

the land use 

prior to zoning 

changes is 

consistent with 

GMA and CPP 

(b)  The proposal does not 

appear to contradict other 

elements, goals and 

policies within the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

None 

identified 

None 

identified 

None 

identified 

at this time, 

however 

there is a 

potential 

None 

identified at 

this time 

22



  

that 

eventually 

there may 

be some 

opposing 

policies to 

discuss 

(c)  The proposal will 

implement or further 

existing goals and policies 

in the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

Yes 

Updates will 

keep the 

Comprehens

ive Plan in 

compliance 

with GMA 

Yes 

Updates will 

keep the 

Comprehens

ive Plan in 

compliance 

with GMA 

The study 

will 

strengthen 

and 

implement  

some of the 

existing 

policies in 

Urban 

Design and 

may 

challenge 

some 

policies in 

Economic 

Developme

nt 

Considering 

this land use 

change will be 

done within the 

context of 

existing goals 

and policies. 

(d) The proposal would 

correct an inconsistency 

within or make a 

clarification to a provision 

of the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

NA NA NA NA 

(e)  The proposed 

amendments have been 

clearly defined to 

determine a fairly accurate 

scope of work. 

Yes since 

it is 

mandated.  

The scope 

of work will 

be 

determined 

in 2013 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

(f)  The proposed 

amendments responds to 

an expressed desire by the 

community. 

NA NA Yes 

 

This is a 

necessary 

action to 

consider 

(g)  The public interest 

would be best served by 

considering the proposal 

in the current year. 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

 

 

23



  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. Conduct the public hearing. 

2. Recommend that the City Council approve the proposed Docket for the 2013 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments. 

 

Attachments:  

Attachment 1 - Proposed Docket (City Council Resolution) 

 

24



RESOLUTION NO.     

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE DOCKET FOR THE 2013 COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENTS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor first adopted a Comprehensive Plan consistent with 

the requirements of the Washington State Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A 

RCW) in 1995 by Ordinance 1027, and adopted amendments to the plan in 1997 by 

Ordinance 1100, in 1998 by Ordinance 1161, in 2000 by Ordinance 1215, in 2001 by 

Ordinance 1287, in 2003 by Ordinance 1340, in 2004 by Ordinance 1396, in 2005 by 

Ordinance 1439 and in 2007 by Ordinance 1488 and in 2008 by Ordinance 1542; and and 

in 2009 by Ordinance 1564; and 2010 by Ordinance 1594; and 2012 by Ordinance 1647; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, in the public interest, may adopt 

amendments or revisions to the Comprehensive Plan no more frequently than once per 

year in accordance with the State of Washington Growth Management Act RCW 

36.70A.130(2); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor in accordance with RCW 36.70A.130 has adopted 

Ordinance 1565 that established a schedule and process to review and amend the 

Comprehensive Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, the proposals in the preliminary docket, as presented below, were reviewed 

against the criteria established in OHMC 18.15.070(2) and determined to be generally 

consistent; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the preliminary 

docket on January 22, 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the docket on ________, 

2013; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 

that the docket contained herein shall be established as the 2013 Comprehensive Plan 

Docket: 

 

2013 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket 

Proposed Amendment Type of  

Amendment 

Priority as per 

OHMC 18.15.050 

2016 Comprehensive Plan Update Mandated 

RCW 36.70A.130 

Priority A 

Shoreline Master Program Mandated 

RCW 36.70A.130 

Priority A 

Land Use Changes – 1000 Se City Beach 

Street 

Sponsored Priority B 

Study on Scenic Views Discretionary  Priority C 

PC Attachment  1

25



 

PASSED and approved by the City Council this _______________, 2013. 

 

        

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

                                  

__________________________ 

       Scott Dudley 

       Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

PC Attachment  1

26



2012 Comprehensive Plan 

Amendments 

Scenic Views 

 

Public Meeting 

 

27



 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR  

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: 2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – SCENIC VIEW CORRIDORS 

DATE: 1/17/2013 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

 

Background:  The City Council included a study on scenic views in the 2012 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket with the intention of eventually preserving 

some of the scenic views that are present today for future generations.  The Planning 

Commission recommended this study since they recognized that some views that the 

community had become accustomed to in the past were blocked by recent development 

and they wished to proactively study the remaining views to determine if some of them 

could be preserved. 

As with all Comprehensive Plan amendments, the project was initiated with a public 

input process.  A request was sent to every household in Oak Harbor soliciting input on 

this topic.  Residents were asked to   provide the city with images of scenic views that 

were important to them.  After the public input process, the Planning Commission 

discussed methodologies and criteria to help identify views that have a larger public 

benefit.  The Planning Commission discussed a set of criteria that would help evaluate 

the views and also discussed the importance of each criterion and weighted them based 

on that importance.  A brief description of the criteria is provided below; 

 Is the view from public property? – This places an importance of the view 

being a public asset and that regulations are in the public interest.  These can 

be streets, parks, schools, trails etc. 

 Is the view from a heavily travelled street? – This criterion places an 

importance on views that are accessible/viewable by a larger number of 

people, such as travelers on scenic byways such as SR20.  The Planning 

Commission discussed the importance of this criteria based on the 

classification of the street (arterial, collector etc.) and the level of traffic on 

it.  It was noted that views enjoyed by the driving population will need to be 

wide and sustained due to the speed at which they are moving.  Also a view 

that is directly ahead and head-on to the lane of travel is different than a view 

that is to the side and parallel to the travel lane.  A head-on view can be more 

sustained than a view that is parallel to the travel lane which can be 

intermittent and may be viewed across several properties.   

28



2 

 Is the view on a popular pedestrian route? –This provides importance to 

pedestrian views.  Views experienced by pedestrians are different from views 

experienced while driving.  Pedestrians have the opportunity to stop and 

enjoy a narrower view.  

 Is the view of a specific landmark? – View of landmarks such as Mt. Rainier, 

Mt. Baker, Windjammer Windmill, Oak Harbor Bay etc. may be of higher 

importance than others that don’t have a specific draw. 

 Is there a need to buy property to protect a view? –.  If the view is deemed 

significant enough, the public interest could be served by purchasing the 

private development rights.  This criterion could be used to choose which 

views to protect through this method by establishing the value of a scenic 

view in terms of current dollars.  The Planning Commission decided to 

assign negative points to views that will need either purchase or regulation of 

private property.  During the evaluation process on December 11, 2013, the 

Planning Commission realized that many of the favored views today are 

across private property. 

 Is there a need to impose special zoning regulations to maintain, protect or 

reveal a scenic view? – The use of this tool can in many ways be more 

challenging than buying a property to protect the views.  However, if it can 

be done without creating a regulatory taking of the owner’s development 

rights, it’s a great mechanism to protect scenic views. 

  

29



3 

Based on the criteria discussed above, the following table was generated to evaluate the 

views: 

Proposed Criteria Rating Scale* Score 

View from public property H  

View from streets 
 

 

SR 20 M  

Arterial M  

Collector L  

Local L  

View from a pedestrian route H  

View of a specific landmark H  

The need to buy property D1  

The need for special zoning regulations D  

Entry way views H  

Waterfront connectivity H  

Total 
 

 

 *Rating Scale: H= High (100 points), M=Medium (50 points), L=Low (25 points), 
D1=Deduct (-100 points) and D = Deduct (-50 points) 

  

30



4 

 

The list of views that were identified for evaluation is listed below.  A map of the views 

is also attached for your reference. 

 Views 

Rating 

Score 

Qualified 

(Y/N) 

1 Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights to Erie   
2 Northbound SR 20 – Swantown to Scenic 

Heights 
  

3 Scenic Heights Trailhead   
4 SW Freund Street   
5 Waterloo Rd & Scenic Heights   
6 Swantown – Kimball to SR 20   
7 Swantown & Fireside Lane   
8 Barrington Drive and Fleet Street int   
9 Fleet Street   
10 Barrington Drive and Fairhaven int   
11 Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park   
12 Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park   
13 Bayshore Drive – Dock to Midway   
14 Pioneer Way – Midway to Regatta   
15 Pioneer Way – Ireland to Midway   
16 Pioneer Way – SR 20 to City Beach   
17 Jensen Street   
18 Midway Blvd – SE 8th to Midway   
19 Regatta Drive – SE 8th to Pioneer Way   
20 Skagit Valley College parking lot   
21 Crosby Ave by Cathlamet Drive   
22 Crosby Ave by Prow Street   
23 Airline Way   
24 SW 6th and Dyer   
25 Southbound SR 20 and NE 16th Ave   
26 Dock Street – Barrington to Bayshore   
27 Eastbound Ft Nugent    
 

At the December 11, 2012 meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the above listed 

views and evaluated them. However, since the relative importance of various scenic 

views is a subjective topic, the Planning Commissioners differed in their opinions on 

which of them are important irrespective of the criteria based evaluation.  Therefore, it 

was decided that the Planning Commissioners would provide individual input on the 

views.   

As of the date of this memo, staff has received feedback from three Planning 

Commission members regarding the views.  The information has been compiled and 

31



5 

attached to this memo.  Staff recommends that at the January 22, 2013 meeting, the 

Planning Commission use this information to narrow the list of views for further 

analysis
1
.  Staff will gladly incorporate any additional Planning Commission member 

feedback on this topic during the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
1 Further analysis will include a more detailed documentation of the scenic view, identifying potential benefits 
and challenges, contacting impacted property owners and further recommendations. 

32



1

20
25

14

1

5

4

6

26

7

13

2
27

15

9

3

24

17

11

19

8

18

23 22

10

21
16

12

Revised:  12/11/2012

Disclaimer:
Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of
Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy,  eliability or timeliness of anyinformation
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not
be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy, reliability or
timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any information
obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

POTENTIAL VIEW CORRIDOR MAP - DRAFT
Identified Views

1. 
View # View Name

Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights to Erie
2. Northbound SR 20 – Swantown to Scenic Heights
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 
11. 
12. 
13. 
14. 
15. 

Scenic Heights Trailhead
SW Freund Street
Waterloo Rd & Scenic Heights

16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.

Airline Way

Swantown – Kimball to SR 20
Swantown & Fireside Lane
Barrington Drive and Fleet Street int

SW 6th and DyerFleet Street
Barrington Drive and Fairhaven int
Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park
Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park
Bayshore Drive – Dock to Midway
Pioneer Way – Midway to Regatta
Pioneer Way – Ireland to Midway

Pioneer Way – SR 20 to City Beach
Jensen Street
Midway Blvd – SE 8th to Midway
Regatta Drive – SE 8th to Pioneer Way

Southbound SR 20 and NE 16th Ave

Crosby Ave by Prow Street
Crosby Ave by Cathlamet Drive

Dock Street – Barrington to Bayshore

Skagit Valley College parking lot

Legend
Potential View Corridor
City Limits

UGA - County Adopted

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

27. Olive St. - Fort Nugent Ave.

33



Scenic Views Evaluation by Planning Commissioners

Views Score Qualification Score Qualification Score Qualification Score Qualification Difference* Qualification**
1 Northbound SR 20 – Scenic Heights to Erie 300 y 350 y 250 y 350 100 Y 

2 Northbound SR 20 – Swantown to Scenic Heights 300 y 400 y 400 y 300 100 Y 

3 Scenic Heights Trailhead 350 y 325 n 425 y 325 100 nc

4 SW Freund Street 250 y 275 n 275 n 275 25 nc

5 Waterloo Rd & Scenic Heights 200 n 175 n 175 n 175 25 N 

6 Swantown – Kimball to SR 20 200 n 100 n 200 y 200 100 nc

7 Swantown & Fireside Lane 150 n 125 n 125 n 125 25 N 

8 Barrington Drive and Fleet Street int 200 y 175 y 175 n 175 25 nc

9 Fleet Street 250 y 225 y 225 n 225 25 nc

10 Barrington Drive and Fairhaven int 200 n 175 n 175 n 175 25 N 

11 Waterfront Trail – Windjammer Park 400 y 400 y 425 y 400 25 Y 

12 Waterfront Trail – Flintstone Park 400 y 400 y 425 y 400 25 Y 

13 Bayshore Drive – Dock to Midway 450 y 450 y 450 y 450 C Y 

14 Pioneer Way – Midway to Regatta 450 y 450 y 450 y 450 C Y 

15 Pioneer Way – Ireland to Midway 300 y 300 n 300 y 300 C nc

16 Pioneer Way – SR 20 to City Beach 200 n 200 n 200 n 200 C N 

17 Jensen Street 150 n 175 n 75 n 175 100 N 

18 Midway Blvd – SE 8
th to Midway 250 n 250 y 350 y 250 100 nc

19 Regatta Drive – SE 8
th to Pioneer Way 450 y 450 y 450 y 450 C Y 

20 Skagit Valley College parking lot 200 n 150 n 150 n 150 50 N

21 Crosby Ave by Cathlamet Drive 150 n 175 n 75 n 175 100 N

22 Crosby Ave by Prow Street 100 n 75 n 75 n 75 25 N

23 Airline Way 150 n 75 n 75 n 175 100 N

24 SW 6th and Dyer 150 n 75 n 175 n 175 100 N

25 Southbound SR 20 and NE 16th Ave 300 y 300 y 350 y 350 50 Y 

26 Dock Street – Barrington to Bayshore 350 y 350 y 275 n 375 100 Y 

27 Eastbound Ft Nugent 350 y 350 y 350 y 350 C Y 

* The difference between the highest and lowest scores assigned by the Commissioners
"c" no difference/equal scoring

** "Y" = Yes by consensus of Commissioners
"N" = No by consensus
"nc" = no consensus

Fakkema Wasinger Walin Planning Commission Dec 11, 2012 Overall

34



Electronic Message Center Signs 

Code Update 

 

Public Meeting 

 

35



 Page 1 

Memo 

To: Members of the Planning Commission 

Cc: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

From: Ethan Spoo, Senior Planner 

Date: 1/15/13 

Re: Digital Signs Discussion 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this memorandum is to discuss digital signs and the policy choices that those signs bring to the 
community. The memorandum is organized into the following sections: 

 Background : discusses the new sign technology available, the most recent update to the code for 
sign technology, and how other cities treat digital signs. 

 Policy choices:  discusses the basic policy choices presented by digital signs for Oak Harbor. 

BACKGROUND 

DIGITAL SIGN TECHNOLOGY 
Digital signs are one of the newer sign technologies. Electronic message centers are the prior generation of sign 
technology. Digital signs have capabilities, such as high quality video and animation that far exceed the 
capabilities of electronic message centers. As digital signs have been introduced, communities have raised 
questions about if and how these signs should be allowed. Like all other sign technologies, digital signs are 
designed to direct a passer-by’s attention to a business.  

Because of digital signs graphic, video, and animation capabilities, these signs offer business owners more 
choices for changing messages and images to attract attention to their business. At the same time, some 
research has found that these signs create potential safety issues. Signs with video or scrolling text attract twice 
as many glances as static signs and the drivers glance longer.1  

This research on driver safety has been vehemently contested by the billboard and sign industry and retailers; 
they have their own studies showing that such signs are safe and lead to increased sales for retailers.2 

2008-2009 ELECTRONIC MESSAGE CENTER CODE UPDATE 
The City last updated its code pertaining to sign technologies in 2008-2009 when it discussed electronic 
message centers. In response to requests from the business community, Planning Division staff drafted 
language allowing for electronic message centers within the C-3, C-4, and C-5 commercial zones. At the time, 
Planning Commission was concerned about the aesthetic impacts of these signs, the impact of allowing them 
                                                      
1 For studies on driver safety and signs, see Beijer and Smiley, University of Toronto (2004), and the Texas Transportation Institute (2005). 
2 See Tantala, Albert Martin Sr., and Michael Walter Tantala, Tantala Associates. 2007. “A Study of the Relationship between Digital 
Billboards and Traffic Safety in Cuyahoga County, Ohio.” July 7. See also Lee, Suzanne E. et al. 2007. “Driving Performance and Digital 
Billboards: Final Report.” Virginia Tech Transportation Institute Center for Automotive Safety Research. March 22. 
 

36



 Page 2 

along the scenic byway, the size of the sign, animation, and video. The code was crafted to prohibit flashing, 
animation, and video.  

EXISTING CODE 
Oak Harbor’s code does not address digital signs because of their relatively recent introduction. The code 
addresses electronic message center signs by placing restrictions on the signs characteristics such as size of 
the sign, the time of the message, the colors used in the sign, the ability to use animation and video, the 
brightness of the sign, and hours the sign may be turned on when adjacent to residential areas. As previously  
mentioned, flashing, animation, and video are prohibited on electronic message center signs and the images or 
text must remain for a minimum of two seconds. 

HOW OTHER CITIES TREAT DIGITAL SIGNS 
There are a variety of ways that cities treat digital signs ranging from prohibiting them  outright to allowing them 
with few restrictions. Planning Division staff looked at the codes of some cities in Washington, including near to 
Oak Harbor to sample the ways in which these signs are treated with the following findings: 

 Federal Way – Federal Way’s code does not address digital signs specifically, but allows electronic 
message center signs for certain types of land uses and in certain zones. The code prohibits animated 
or moving signs and electronic message center signs near the freeway. 

 Everett – Everett prohibits video boards, but allows electronic message center signs with no 
geographic limits. All messages or images must remain for a minimum of two seconds. 

 Burlington – Burlington prohibits animated, moving, or flashing signs. Animation is defined as “a sign 
employing actual motion or the illusion of motion” and this prohibition applies to “electrically activated 
signs.” Electronic message center signs are allowed, but only for multiple tenant complexes over 20 
acres in size. Burlington requires that the sign be within 100 feet of the freeway. Messages must 
remain for at least two seconds. “Displays shall not appear to move toward or away from the viewer, 
expand or contract, bounce, rotate, spin, twist, or otherwise portray graphics or animation as it moves 
onto, is displayed on, or leaves the signboard.” 

 Anacortes – Anacortes specifically allows digital message signs, including TV, computer and video 
screens, but requires that the image or message remain for 20 seconds and limits size of the sign to 24 
square feet. Digital electronic signs are prohibited in the central business district. 

 Mt. Vernon – Mt. Vernon’s code does not reference digital or video signs specifically, but instead uses 
the term “electronically controlled.” These signs are not allowed in residential districts, but are allowed 
in commercial, industrial, and public districts subject to certain restrictions such as hours of operation 
and location near arterial streets. Animation and video are not specifically prohibited. 

 Bellingham – Bellingham regulates digital, video, and electronic signs by district. The signs are 
permitted in some districts and prohibited in others depending upon the character of the district. 

LEGAL BOUNDARIES 
The City has broad legal authority to regulate the time, place, and manner of digital signs. It can do anything 
from prohibit all digital signs to allow them with few restrictions. 

POLICY QUESTIONS 

Before staff can draft a code pertaining to digital signs, we need guidance from the Planning Commission. First 
and foremost, we must answer whether the City will prohibit or allow these signs. The signs may be an 
important new technology that retailers and businesses can use to draw customers to their establishments. On 
the other hand, as discussed above these signs raise some questions about safety and community character. If 
the City wants to allow these digital sign technologies, it can choose to place restrictions on the characteristics of 
these signs which address their impacts.  Staff requests Planning Commission guidance on the following policy 
questions: 

37



 Page 3 

1. Size? Should there be limits on the size of these signs? The existing code restricts the size of electronic 
message center signs to 50% of the size of the commercial sign in which the message centers are 
incorporated. Overall sign size is required to be proportional to the size of the building façade. 

2. Animation and video? Animation may be prohibited or allowed. Animation is usually defined as 
movement or the appearance of movement. Many jurisdictions require that images or text remain on 
screen for a minimum specified time. Generally, the less time the image is on the screen, the more 
distracting it could be for drivers. For electronic message centers, the code uses two seconds as the 
minimum display time for messages. Are there some aspects of animation or video acceptable and 
others that are unacceptable? 

3. Site Location? Should digital signs be located on freestanding sign structures or only on the building 
face or both? Generally speaking, the closer the sign is to the road, the more visible it is and the greater 
potential for driver distraction.  

4. Location within City? Many cities restrict digital signs to commercial districts and discourage their 
placement near highways or freeways. In Oak Harbor’s case, the primary commercial areas in town are 
along Highway 20, Midway Boulevard and Pioneer Way. Highway 20 has been designated as a state 
“scenic byway.” Island County has adopted the “Whidbey Scenic Isle Way Corridor Management Plan” 
to preserve the scenic qualities of the scenic byway. If digital signs are allowed on Highway 20, it is 
possible that Island County and the Washington Department of Transportation (WSDOT) may have 
concerns about the aesthetic impacts of these signs. In the worst-case scenario, the state might revoke 
the scenic byway designation in Oak Harbor, which could have adverse economic impacts if it 
discourages tourists and motorist from visiting the City. Should there be different regulations for 
different commercial areas or zoning districts? 

5. Hours of operation? Should these signs be turned off during nighttime hours? What about if adjacent to 
or visible from residential areas?  

6. Brightness? Is it necessary to regulate this type of sign different from other types of illuminated signs? 
Should there be limits on the sign’s brightness during daytime and nighttime hours? 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. “Digital Signs: Context Matters”, Zoning Practice, April 2008, Issue Number 4, American Planning 
Association. 

2. Existing code 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46


	January 22, 2013 AGENDA
	December 11, 2012 Draft Minutes
	2013 Comprehensive PlanAmendments – PreliminaryDocket
	2012 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS – SCENIC VIEW CORRIDORS
	Digital Signs Discussion



